

Student Administration

Training Guide

Troubleshooting Wait Lists

SA - Registration



Table of Contents

Steps to Troubleshoot Wait Lists	2
Introduction	2
Understanding Wait List Management	2
Wait list Position Numbers	3
Automatic Enroll from Wait List Feature	4
Wait List Cycle	5
Wait List Setup	6
Class Roster	8
Enrollment Request	9
UofC Enroll Request History	10
Block Enroll Merge	13
Student Services Center	18



SA - Registration

Steps to Troubleshoot Wait Lists

- Check the configuration of the waitlist by navigating to Curriculum Management > Schedule of Classes > Maintain Schedule of Classes > Enrolment Control
- Confirm in the **Class Roster** the student's position on the waitlist and their email address
- Use Enrolment Request to view the details of a message
- The **UofC Enroll Request History** page will be useful to find the error message details if investigating a specific student's situation. In addition to the error message details, this page can be used to check the student's enrollment activity and status relating to the enrollment request.
- **Enrollment Request from Waitlist Engine** Staff in Enrolment Services can also view the error messages for the entire waitlist process which ran overnight on a given date.
- The student can check their **Student Portal** to confirm their position on the wait list.
- Staff can check the **Student Services Center** to confirm the student's position on the wait list.

Introduction

The wait list management functionality in Student Administration enables you to set processing parameters that define the groups of students to move from wait lists to enrollment into classes within a specific enrollment period.

Understanding Wait List Management

The decision to add wait lists to classes rests with the departments and/or faculties offering the class.

There are two types of wait lists (automatic and manual) that can be used.

Manual wait lists are managed at the department or faculty level. Students can add themselves to wait lists and departments or faculties will manually move them off the wait lists and into classes.

Automatic wait lists are managed by the wait list process which runs hourly and moves eligible students off wait lists into classes. The wait list process checks for time conflicts, etc., before moving students off the wait lists and enrolling the students into classes.

SA - Registration



The wait list process runs hourly and attempts to move eligible students off the wait list and into the class.

If the class is full when the wait list process runs, wait listed students will keep their position on the wait list.

If the wait list process encounters an error (e.g., time conflict) when attempting to move a student off a wait list, an email will be sent to the student requesting that they fix the error. The student will not lose their position on the wait list and they will remain on the wait list until they fix the error or drop the class.

Important notes regarding error messages:

There are limits on what communications go out to students about errors. Email notifications are not sent for every error that the wait list might encounter, as there are literally hundreds of error messages that the system could potentially trigger during an enrollment transaction.

Communications are targeted to the following specific types of errors because they are situations that the student can act upon:

- Time Scheduling Conflict, not enrolled
- Hold on record, Add not processed
- Maximum Units Exceeded (various situations)

There are many other errors that could occur and be reported as messages within the wait list process about which a student <u>would not</u> receive any notification.

If the wait list process does not encounter an error, the student is moved from the wait list and registered in the class. The student receives an email notification advising they are now enrolled in the class.

The more challenging aspect of managing wait lists is to determine the nature of <u>unreported</u> errors. (i.e. errors that the wait list process encountered but were not communicated to the student because they weren't one of the types of errors listed.)

Wait list Position Numbers

When a student enrolls or is wait listed into a class the Enrollment process assigns him the next available student position number. For instance, the first student to enroll in a class would get a student position number of 10, the second 20, the third 30, and so on. Student position numbers identify the order in which students enroll into a class. In addition, student position numbers determine the position students hold on the wait list: the student with the wait list position number of 1 is the student who has the lowest student position number and an enrollment status of waiting.



SA - Registration

For example, suppose student A is the 31st student to try to enroll into a class with an enrollment capacity of 30. They are put on the wait list (has an enrollment status of waiting) and the Enrollment process gives them a student position number of 310. Their wait list position number is 1, because they are the only student in the class with an enrollment status of waiting. Then a second student B puts themselves on the wait list. The system gives student B position number of 320. Since student A has a lower student position number than student B, the system gives student B a wait list position number of 2. If there is one seat available when you run the Wait list process, student A, the student with the lowest wait list position number, is enrolled (the Enrollment process changes their enrollment status of waiting. Therefore, student B's wait list position number changes to 1.

In multiple component classes, the Enrollment process assigns students the next available student position number for each component. For this reason, a single student will often have different wait list position numbers for each component. For example, a student could have a student position number of 130 and a wait list position number of 1 for one component, and a student position number of 60 and a wait list position number of 3 for the related component (depending on how many students were already enrolled and were on the wait list for each component at the time the student received a student position number).

When the process runs on a class section, it creates an enrollment request. The enrollment request includes all related components of the class. For the enrollment engine to process an enrollment request successfully, all related components have to have a seat available for that request. If all related components have a seat available for that request. If all related components have a seat available for that request. If all related components have a seat available for that request into all of the related components. If at least one related component is full, the enrollment engine would produce an error for the request, and the student would not get enrolled into any of the related components.

Automatic Enroll from Wait List Feature

The Wait List feature is controlled by the **Auto Enroll from Wait List** and Wait List Capacity options (on the **Enrollment Control** page of the schedule of classes). If you select the **Auto Enroll from Wait List** option for a class, you can use the wait list process to move qualified students from the class wait list to enrollment into that class as space becomes available. If you do not select this option, you can manually move students from the wait list to enrollment into a class.

As you manage your wait lists, you can use the **Class Roster** page to view students on the wait list for a particular class section. <u>The system performs co-requisite and prerequisite checking before placing a student</u> on the wait list. However, the system does **NOT** check for a scheduling time conflict **BEFORE** it places a student on a wait list. Scheduling time conflicts and all of the other enrollment edits are performed when the system attempts to move a student from the wait list to enrollment in a class. You can view an individual

SA - Registration



student's position and status on the wait list for a class through the Wait List Position link. This link appears only for applicable enrollment requests on the **U of C Enroll Request History** page.

Wait List Cycle

The following example (using CHEM 201) outlines the automatic wait list process functions throughout a one-day cycle.

At 8:30 a.m., CHEM 201 is full to capacity at 200 and is therefore in 'closed' status. Eligible students may add themselves to the wait list if one exists.

At 10:30 a.m., the wait list fills to capacity.

At 11:00 a.m., a student drops CHEM 201. Because students are on the wait list, the status of the class will remain 'closed', but the system will indicate capacity in the class. This class will remain closed to enrollment until the wait list process runs.

At 1:30 p.m., a student drops themselves off the wait list for CHEM 201. This opens up a spot and an eligible student may add themselves to the wait list. NOTE: students who want to enroll in classes which are full and have wait lists should continue to attempt enrolment in case a spot opens on the wait list.

The wait list process runs hourly and attempts to move students off the wait list and into CHEM 201.

Immediately after the wait list process runs, there are four possible scenarios for the status of the class:

Scenario #1: CHEM 201 has capacity and is in 'open' status and students are on the wait list.

In this instance, the students on the wait list will be those that need to fix errors (i.e., time conflicts, maximum number of units). Students on the wait list receive an email notification advising them to fix errors. Students retain their position on the wait list until they fix the errors or remove themselves from the wait list. Students can enroll in CHEM 201 until the class fills, then place themselves on the wait list, albeit behind the students who have errors.

If the student has no errors, (i.e. time conflicts) the system will enroll the student in the class. The student receives an email notification advising they are now registered in the class.

Scenario #2: CHEM 201 is full and is in 'closed' status and students are on the wait list.

In this instance, the students on the wait list are those that the system was not able to move off the wait list because the class remained full.



SA - Registration

Scenario #3: CHEM 201 has capacity and is in 'open' status and the wait list is empty.

In this instance, students can enroll in the class and when it fills, eligible students can place themselves on the wait list.

Scenario #4: CHEM 201 is full and is in 'closed' status and the wait list is full. In this instance, enrollment is not permitted until drops occur and the wait list process runs.

This completes the full wait list cycle.

Wait List Setup

Check the configuration of the wait list.

- is there a wait list?
- is the wait list set up to automatically enroll students from the wait list?
- or
- is the department managing their wait list manually? If the wait list is set up so the department is managing this manually, follow up with the department to ensure they are managing their wait lists appropriately i.e. enrolling students based on their position in the wait list.

Navigation: Curriculum Management > Schedule of Classes > Maintain Schedule of Classes

Auto versus Manual Enrollment from a Wait List

When the **Auto Enroll from Wait List** box is checked, the wait list process will automatically move students off the wait list if there is space in the class. When the wait list box is <u>NOT</u> checked, students must be moved off the wait list manually by the department/faculty office.

This shows a "manual" wait list set-up:



SA - Registration

Basic Data Meetings Enrollment Cont	trol <u>R</u> eserve Cap <u>N</u> otes <u>Ex</u> am	Exam Info LMS Data Class Comments
Course ID 134377 Academic Institution University	Course Offering Nbr 1 of Calgary	
Term Fall 2019 Subject Area PSYC Catalog Nbr. 251	Undergrad Psychology Developmental Revolutions	
Enrollment Control	Developmental Psychology	Find View All First 🕚 1 of 2 🕑 Last
Session 1 Class Section 01 Associated Class 1 *Class Status Active	Regular Academic Component Lecture Units 3.00	Class Nbr 70788 Event ID 000130816 Cancel Class
Class Type Enrollment		Enrollment Status Closed
*Add Consen	t No Special Consent Required 🔻	Requested Room Capacity 120 Total
*Drop Consen	t No Special Consent Required 🔹	Enrollment Capacity 120 120
1st Auto Enroll Section		Wait List Capacity 5 3
2nd Auto Enroll Section		Minimum Enrollment Nbr
Resection to Section		
C Auto Enroll from Wait List	Cancel if Student Enrolled	
🔚 Save 🔯 Return to Search 📋 Prev	ious in List 🗧 Next in List 🗄 Notify	
Basic Data Meetings Enrollment Control Res	erve Cap Notes Exam Exam Info LMS Dat	a Class Comments

The Auto Enroll from Wait List checkbox must be checked if the wait list process is automatic.

If a class with a wait list has more than one component, a wait list cap must be added to <u>all</u> components of the class.

This example shows a class with both a lecture and tutorial component. Each lecture has a wait list cap of 10; therefore, each tutorial has a wait list cap of 10.



SA - Registration

Update Sec	tions of a C	lass					
Acad	Course ID emic Institution	162603 University	of Calgary	Course Offering	gNbr 1		
	Term	Fall 2019	Un	ndergrad			
	Subject Area	ACCT	Ac	counting			
	Catalog NDI	217	Int	roductory Financial Act	ct		<u></u>
Class Section	1S	a mé l'impita	P	ersonalize Find Vie	w 8 🔛 🖽	First	I-10 of 10 🖤 Las
Class Status	Class Enrollm	Class Nbr	Compon	ant End Con	End Tot	Mait Can	Weit Tet Min End
Degular	Section	TOACA	Compon	Enri Cap		wan Cap	wait fot Min Enn
Regular	01	/2464	Lecture	70	70	10	4
Regular	02	72465	Lecture	70	51	10	
Regular	03	72466	Lecture	70	70	10	10
Regular	04	72467	Lecture	70	70	10	9
Regular	05	72468	Lecture	70	70	10	2
Regular	T01	72470	Tutorial	70	70	10	4
Regular	T02	72471	Tutorial	70	51	10	
Regular	T03	72472	Tutorial	70	70	10	10
Regular	T04	72473	Tutorial	70	70	10	9
Regular	T05	72474	Tutorial	70	70	10	2
🖷 Save 🛛 💽 I	Return to Search	↑ Pre	vious in List	↓ Next in List	¥ Notify		

Navigation: Curriculum Management > Schedule of Classes > Update Sections of a Class

Class Roster

Navigation: Curriculum Management > Class Roster > Class Roster

The Class Roster can be used to confirm the student's position on the wait list and their email address. *For FOIP reasons some information is removed.*



SA - Registration

Make sure you change the Enrollment Status to "Waiting".



Enrollment Request

Navigation: Records and Enrollment > Enroll Students > Enrollment Request

Viewing the Enrollment Request allows you to look at the details of a message. Since the notification email searches for messages by message number, it might be useful in some cases to record the specific number of the message that is appearing on the waitlist transaction record. The message number would be useful information to include if submitting a request for PeopleSoft Campus Solutions support.



SA - Registration

			Universi	ty of Calgary	
Undergraduate Pro	orams Ar	ts Bachelor	Fall 201	8	
Er	rollment Request ID 000887 User ID 042559	1453 27	Status Operator Enrollment	Errors Found	Submit
Enrollment Reque	st Details			Find View All	First 🕚 1 of 1 🕑 La
Seque	nce Nbr 1 Errors				+
*Acti	ion Enroll	•	Action Reason		
	Override Action Date		Action Date 2018/03/26	3	
	Wait List Okay				
Class	Nor 76220 C MUSI Regular Related Class 1 762210	223 01 Lect Academic Und	ure Performance Practicum ergraduate Programs	Ш	
	Related Class 1 70221	B01 Labor.	atory		
	Related Class 2	1			
	Start Date	21			
	Instructor ID				
	Repeat Code	٤		Transcript Note ID	Q
Override					
		Grading	Basis GRD Graded	Grad	e Input 🔍
		Units 7	Taken 3.00	Course	Count 1.00
		Dociar	ation		
		Design	Take Requirement Dec	ignation RD	Grade
				ignation no	
			Class Limit		
Additional	Appointment Requisites	Career Service Indicator	Time Conflict	Unit Load	
overnaes	Dynamic Dates				
Dro	op This Class if Enrolled]0			
Entron wiessage	•				
Messa	ge Sequence 1	Em	or Last	Update DateTime 18/03/26	9:23:58AM
No Valid Appointm	ent Found And Open Enrollmer	t Period Has Not Begun. (1-	4640,79)		
i ne open enrollme	nt period has not begun and no	valio enroliment appointme	nt was round. The enrollment rec	juest was not processed.	

UofC Enroll Request History

Navigation: Records and Enrollment > Enroll Students > U of C Enroll Request History

The UofC Enroll Request History screen is used to check the student's enrollment activity, status and messages relating to enrollment.



SA - Registration

In the example below the messages indicate the student remained on the waitlist each time the waitlist process ran and shows unsuccessful because the course continues to be full. For this example line 32 indicates waitlist for SPAN 203.

Uo	fC Enrol	Reques	st History								
								* 📋			
Ac	ademic I	nstitutio	n UCALG	Academic	Career l	JGRD		5 m o			
Ter	m:		2191	Academic	Program s	SCBCH					
F	nrolime	nt Histo	אינ					Personalize Find View 100 🗇 🔜	First	1-50 of	F342 🕦 Last
E	Inrollme	nt Info	Overrides	Class Info	Additional Info		1		11131	- 1-30 0	542 0 2051
	Subject	Catalo Nbr	g Class Section	Last Update DateTime	Action	Grade Input	Status	Message Text	Detail	OPRID	Enroliment Request Source
	BIOL	205	LEC 01	18/08/17 1:15:08PM	Enroll		Errors	Class 13915 is full or has seats that are currently reserved for a particular student group.	Detail		SS Enroll
1	2 BIOL	205	LEC 01	18/08/17 1:12:15PM	Enroll		Errors	Class 13915 is full or has seats that are currently reserved for a particular student group.	Detail		SS Enroll
				n <i>141</i>				13 is full in the are			
30	PHIL	ź	cto oz	ιδι. 2 6:46:30PM	⊾ .roll		L 13	currently reserved for a particular student group.	Detail 3		ے حمال
31	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 12:01:10PM			Success		Detail		WL Engine
32	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 11:01:01AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
33	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 10:01:00AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
34	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 9:01:22AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
35	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 8:01:20AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
36	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 7:01:11AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
37	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 6:00:55AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
38	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 5:01:32AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
39	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 4:01:28AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
40	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 3:01:35AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
41	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 2:02:10AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
42	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 1:01:39AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
43	SPAN	203	LEC 01	19/01/16 12:02:04AM			Errors	Already waitlisted and class 10828 full.	Detail		WL Engine
				14.145				and the second second second			

Clicking on details will display specifics related to the waitlist error and the Enrollment Request ID number (e.g. 0009836952).



SA - Registration

Enrollment Req	uest History	/		
Enrollment Requ	est ID 0009836952	Enrollment Re	eq Detail Sequence	212
Enrollment Re	quest Message Log	Find	First 🕚 1 of 1 🕑	Last
Message Text	Already waitlisted an Requested enrollmen List and class enrollm	d class 10828 fu t add was not pr tent limit has bee	II. ocessed. Already on V en reached.	Wait
Return				

Additional Info tab and navigating to, for example, line 32 will allow you to click on the Enrollment Request ID (e.g. 0009836952).

Uo	fC Enroll	Request	History								
							*	<u> </u>			
Aca	ademic lı	nstitution	UCALG	Academic Care	er	UGRD	N III	Ð			
Ter	m:		2191	Academic Prog	ram	SCBCH		V-			
E	nrollme	nt Histo	ry	_		_	Per	sonalize Find	View 100 🔄	📑 🛛 First 🕚	1-50 of 342 🕑 Last
E	nrollmen	t Info	Overrides	Class Info Additio	onal Info	o 🛄					
	Subject	Catalog Nbr	Class Section	Enrollment Request ID	Seq #	Repeat Code	Requiremen	t Designation	Requirement Designation Option	Requirement Designation Grade	Transcript Note ID
1	BIOL	205	LEC 01	0009352278	2				No		
2	BIOL	205	LEC 01	0009352271	2				No		
3	3 CHEM	201	LAB B09	0009657251	2				No		
4	-	76		109352278							
		265									
29	PHIL	279	LEC 02	0009667420	1				No		
30	PHIL	279	LEC 02	0009316546	2				No		
31	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009837571	200				No		
32	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009836952	212				No		
33	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009836469	154				No		
34	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009836202	516				No		
35	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009836065	504				No		
36	SPAN	203	LEC 01	0009835984	519				No		
27	°PAN	2	LEC 01	າ0¢ີາ5942	4.9 *				51		

SA - Registration



Block Enroll Merge

In the following example, the Enrollment Request ID being viewed in Block Enroll Merge.

Navigation: Records and Enrolment > Enroll Students > Block Enrollment > Block Enroll Merge

Enter the Enrollment Request ID retrieved from the enrollment request search into the Block Enroll Merge search page:

Enter any information you have and click Search. Leave fields blank for a list of all va	lues
Find an Existing Value Add a New Value	
Search Criteria	
Enrollment Request ID begins with 🗸 0009836952 Q	
ID begins with 🗸	
Academic Career = V	
Academic Institution begins with V	
Term begins with 🗸	
Class Nbr = 🗸	
User ID begins with 🗸	
Campus ID begins with V	
National ID begins with V	
Last Name begins with V	
First Name begins with V	
Case Sensitive	
<u>1</u> 2	

When the "Search" button is selected, the component will open Block Enroll Merge:



SA - Registration

Block Enroll Merge Block Enroll Detail Block Enroll Detail Block Enroll Detail	oll Detail 2
Enrollment Request ID 0009836952 FRequest St	atus Errors Kata Submit
Merge Blocks	
Academic Institution UCALG University of Calga	ry Merge
Student Block	
Detail / Create	
Class Block	
Detail / Create	
Filtering Criteria	
Academic Career	Retrieve
Term	
Class Nbr 🔍 Detail Sta	tus 🗸 🔨
Save Return to Search † Previous in List I Next in List	Notify CRefresh
ock Enroll Merge Block Enroll Detail Block Enroll Detail 1 Block Enroll Detail 2	

Use the "**Retrieve**" button to populate and open the "**Block Enroll Detail**" page and navigate to the student ID number. Note this page lists the students for the class number and the result. **Tip:** Sort the ID number heading to locate the student ID. *Information removed for FOIP reasons*.



SA - Registration

		-								_
		Enrollmen	t Request ID 00098	36952						
					Person	alize Fin	d View 100	💷 🔜 🛛 Firs	st 🕙 1-100 of 86	7 🕑 Last
Seq	# ID	Name		Term	Career	Class N	br Action	Status	DETAIL	
1	300:			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om Success	DETAIL	
2	300:			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om t Errors foun	d DETAIL	
3	101			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	t Errors foun	d DETAIL	
4	3004			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	errors foun	d DETAIL	
5	300 [.]			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om t Errors foun	d DETAIL	
6	300-			2191	UGRD	10855	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om t Errors foun	d DETAIL	
7	100			2191	UGRD	13699	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om t Errors foun	d DETAIL	
8	300			2191	UGRD	13963	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om Success	DETAIL	
9	300			2191	UGRD	13963	Enroll fr Wait Lis	om Errors foun	d DETAIL	
- 1			-	219	i sa tina sa a		in course	and a star		and the second
				2 51				л ́н с	L. Sand	JETAIL
3	0056	I	3	2191	UGRD		12656	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
3	0056	I	3	2191	UGRD		13571	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
3	0056	1	,	2191	UGRD		11695	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
3	0056	I		2191	UGRD		10416	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
	'153	F		2191	UGRD		10828	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
3	0057			2191	UGRD		10832	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL
3	0058	1		2191	UGRD		15030	Enroll from Wait List	Errors found	DETAIL

After locating the specific student, click on Detail.

In the case of the class 10828 Spanish 203, there were no spots available for students. The specifics can be viewed using the "DETAIL" link. The associated page has full details about the enrollment.



SA - Registration

	Enrollment R	equest ID 00098369	52						
rollment Reque	st							Find View All	First 🕚 1 of 1 🕑
ID	153				Institution	University of Calgary			
Career l	Undergraduate	Programs			Primary Prog	Science Bachelor	Term W	19	
Enrollment									
Seq # 212 Enro	Action oll from Wait Lis	st	Class Nbr 10828	SPAN 203 Beginners' Spanish II	01	Grading Basis NON	Related	Q Related	2]Q
Action D	Dt 2019/01/18			Regular UGRD		Grade In 🔍	Units Taken 3.00	0	
Reaso	n Q								
Re	equest Status	Errors	User	ID 04274503					
Verrides									
	10	De sistere De sister	C						
AC	cess ID	Registrar Registra	tions Group	Class Limit		anding Pasis	Service Indicator		
						hading basis	Time Conflict		
		Career		Class Units	1 F	leguisites	Unit Load		
		Dynamic Dates					Wait List Okay		
10000000								Find 13 Sam All	1714 (A) 4 444 (A) 1
lessages				Record to France		Local House Book	T 1000100 (4.01.01.01.01	Find View All	First @ 1 or 1 @ L
'	Message Sequ	Already waitliste	ed and class	Sevenity Error 10828 full. (14640,164)		Last Update Date	Time 19/01/16 11:01:01AM		
- 1		Requested enro	ollment add w	as not processed. Already	y on Wait List and	class enrollment limit has	been reached.		
								-	
-									

This is not an unexpected message but if a series of errors were occurring and producing a different sort of message, this could be detected by monitoring the results of the nightly processes. Or, if a student reports a problem, it might also be useful to check the nightly results to see if any other students in the same class or any other classes were affected by the same situation.

It is also possible to confirm how spots were filled for a class that did have space available when the process ran. Notice a successful waitlist process for class 10855 ACCT 323. The details for that transaction are:



SA - Registration

		equest ID 0008630852						processing .	0	
roliment Reques	st							Find View All	First 🕚 1	1 of 1 🕐 L
ID 3	003			Instit	tution University of Calgary					
Career U	Indergraduate	Programs		Primary	Prog Haskayne Schl of Bus	iness Bach	Term W19			
Enrollment										
Seq # 1 Enro	Action Il from Wait Lis	t	s Nbr 0855 ACCT Introductory Regular	323 01 Managerial Acct UGRD	Grading Basis GRD Grade In	Units Tak	Related 1	Related 2		
Reason Rea Dverrides	ı quest Status	Success	User ID 0427450	3						
Acc	ess ID	Registrar Registrations	Group							
		Action Date	Class	Limit	Grading Basis	Service Indica	tor			
		 Appointment 	Class	Links	_	Time Conflict				
		Career	Class	Units	Requisites	Unit Load				
		Dynamic Dates				Wait List Okay				
lessages								Find View All	First 🕚 1	of 1 🕑 La
N	Aessage Sequ	ence	Severity		Last Update Da	teTime				

The first example shows "successful" and the second shows "errors". The two lines that follow are for the next students on the wait list for that class and the details for those transactions are:

Block Enroll <u>M</u> erg	Block Enro	II <u>D</u> etail Block En	roll Detail 1	Block Enroll Detail 2					
	Enrollment R	equest ID 00098369	52 🚤						
nrollment Requ	iest							Find View All	First 🕚 1 of 1 🛞 L
ID	153				Institution	University of Calgary			
Career	Undergraduate	Programs			Primary Prog	Science Bachelor	Term	W19	
Enrollment									
Seq #	Action		Class Nbr			Grading Basis	Relate	d 1 Related	2
212 Er	nroll from Wait Li	st	10828	SPAN 203 Beginners' Spanish II	01	NON		٩]Q
Action	Dt 2019/01/18			Regular UGRD		Grade In 🔍	Units Taken 3	.00	
Reas	ion 🔍 🔍								
F	Request Status	Errors	User	ID 04274503					
Overrides									
A	Access ID	Registrar Registra	tions Group						
		Action Date		Class Limit		irading Basis	Service Indicator		
		Appointment		Class Links			Time Conflict		
		Career		Class Units	1 F	equisites	Unit Load		
		Dynamic Dates					□ Wait List Okay		
lessages								Find View All	First 🚯 1 of 1 🛞 La
	Message Sequ	ence 1 Already waitlist Requested enro	ed and class ollment add w	Severity Error 10828 full. (14640,164) as not processed. Alread	y on Wait List and	Last Update Date	Time 19/01/16 11:01:01AM	 Image: A second s	
Save 0 R	leturn to Search	ta Previous in Li	st 🚛 N	ext in List 🔽 Notify	C Refresh			Ad	d 🖉 Update/Displa
									Carl - Franking
sk Enroll Merge	Block Enroll De	tail Block Enroll Deta	III 1 Block E	nroll Detail 2					



SA - Registration

Questions can arise about why a student was "passed over" by the process and an open spot was given to someone further down the wait list. This display of information can be helpful in determining sequence of events and what the error condition was that prevented the student from being moved into the course.

Student Services Center

The Student Services Center screen can also be used to confirm the courses the student is wait listed for and their position in the wait list.

Navigation: Campus Community > Student Services Centre



Click the **My Class Schedule** link to display the student's schedule.

On Select a Term select the applicable **Term** (e.g. Fall 2019) and press **Continue**.



SA - Registration

Use the Class Schedule Filter Options and check the **Show Wait listed Classes** checkbox to display classes the student is wait listed for and the students position in the wait list. Be sure to click **Filter** upon making your selection from the filter options.

renn L	oad Full	Time						-	-	
Fall 201	19 Unde	rgradu	uate Pro	ograms	Universi	ty of Calgary			Chang	ge Term
🔻 Cla	iss Sche	edule	Filter (Options	5					1
				🗌 She	ow Enroll	ed Classes				
				🗆 She	ow Dropp	ed Classes				
				She	ow Waitlis	sted Classes				
					Filter	r				
					Filter	r				
MGST	217 - In	tro to	Busin	ess An	Filter alytics	r				
MG ST Status	217 - I n	tro to) Busin Waitlist I	ess Ana Position	Filter alytics Unit	ts Grading		Grade	Deadlines	
MGST Status Waiting	217 - In	tro to) Busin Waitlist I 1	ess An	Filter alytics Unit 3.00	ts Grading Graded		Grade	Deadlines]
MGST Status Waiting Class Nbr	217 - In Section	tro to	Busin Waitlist I 1 xonent	ess An Position Days & T	Filter alytics Uni 3.00 Times	ts Grading Graded Room	Instruc	Grade	Deadlines	
MGST Status Waiting Class Nbr 72726	217 - In Section 05	Comp	Busin Waitlist I 1 ponent ire	Position Days & MoWeF 1:50PM	Filter alytics Unit 3.00 Times Fr 1:00PM	ts Grading Graded Room - SH 215	Instruc	Grade tor	Deadlines Start/End Date 2019/09/05 - 2019/12/06	